
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 13 April 2021 

 

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

On: Wednesday 21 April 2021 At: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all External Overview & Scrutiny meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will 

be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - 
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

To: Councillor P Pennington (Chair) 
Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: L Ford, S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, J McKenzie 
and S Newton 
 
Non elected Members: Mr P Topham 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 11) 

 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March. 
 

3.   Public Participation  

 15 minute period for public contributions 



 
 

 

4.   Action List (Pages 12 - 13) 

5.   Declaration Of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.  
 

6.   Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II  

7.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair  

8.   Petroc College / Promoting Youth Employment  

 To receive a presentation from Mr Sean Mackney, Principal and CEO Petroc College. 
 

9.   Annual Report (Pages 14 - 21) 

10.   Consideration of the Forward Plan 2021 - 2022 (Pages 22 - 23) 

11.   Exclusion Of The Public  

 The Chair to move:-  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 

 Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 
 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Remote meeting via Zoom 
 

Wednesday, 10 March 2021 - 2.00 pm 
 

RESENT Councillor P Pennington (Chair) 
 

 Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors L Ford, S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, 
C Leather, J McKenzie and S Newton 

 
 Mr P Topham 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 
 D Hunter - Legal Services Manager 
 J Williams - Public Health & Housing Manager 
 H Page - Housing Options Team Leader 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 M Richards - Democratic Services Officer 

 
 B Shaw - Westward Housing 

 
 Councillors C Hodson, T Inch and N Laws 

 
 

49.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

50.    MINUTES  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Newton 
and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2021 be agreed and 
signed as a correct record. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

CLLR COTTLE-HUNKIN C X   

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

CLLR FORD, L X   

CLLR HARDING, S X   

CLLR HAWKINS, C    

CLLR LANGFORD, S X   

CLLR LEATHER, C X   

CLLR McKENZIE, J X   

CLLR NEWTON, S X   

CLLR PENNINGTON, P W X   

Mr P TOPHAM X   

 
Councillor Hawkins was experiencing technical difficulties and did not take 
part in the vote. 
 
(Vote: For - unanimous) 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Minute 43 – The Chair advised the Committee that the recommendation that 
“Full Council write to the local MP or Central Government to encourage them 
to support levels of district and county funding for these voluntary charities” 
had not gone forward as Central Government is not involved in this funding.  
The County Council was already funding and funding from the district was 
covered in the second motion which went to Full Council on 22 February 
2021. 
 

51.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There were no public contributions. 
 

52.    ACTION LIST  
 
The action list was noted. 
 

53.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and 
when the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

54.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 
There were no Part II items. 
 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

55.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair informed the Committee that the Housing Options Team Leader 
would be delivering a presentation following the presentation from Westward 
Housing.   
 

56.    WESTWARD HOUSING  
 
The Chair welcomed Barbara Shaw, Chief Executive of Westward Housing. 
 
Ms Shaw informed the committee that she meets with the Chief Executive 
every 6 months and her colleagues work closely with a variety of TDC teams, 
including Planning, Enabling and the Benefits Team. 
 
A brief overview of the organisation‟s structure was given.  The Board 
consists of 10 Members and the Chair of the Customer Senate joins all 
meetings.  The Executive consists of 3 portfolio holders and there are 4 
operational directors, who are members‟ main contacts.  (Contact details are 
in the Q&A document.)  All of the company‟s activity through employment, 
procurement, development and working with key partners creates a social 
value of approximately £28m each year. 
 
Westward Housing‟s Strategic Plan was reviewed in 2019 ready for 2020 and 
covers a 5-year period up to 2025.  In summer 2020 the Board had reviewed 
the Plan in light of Covid.  The main strategic objective is to provide homes 
and to support communities.   
 
Ms Shaw spoke about Westward Housing‟s values and priorities.  She gave 
details of the current housing stock in Torridge and the collection of rental 
income and arrears.  Westward had given an assurance at the start of the 
pandemic that customers falling behind with payment due to Covid would not 
lose their homes.  Furthermore, Westward offered a financial inclusion 
service, helping customers to claim all the benefits to which they are entitled. 
 
Members were informed about sites which were currently being developed 
and those in the pipeline.   
 
A short break was made for questions and the following issues were 
addressed: 
 

 In response to a question about play areas being developed for 
housing, Ms Shaw assured members that prior to any such 
development, residents would be consulted and assessments of 
usage would be carried out. 

 

 Ms Shaw explained the process for allocation of housing.  However, 
she would be happy to provide further information on this. 

 

 A detailed explanation about affordable and social housing was given. 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

 
The final part of the presentation focused on Westward‟s carbon agenda, 
covering what had been done so far, particularly in relation to the programme 
of environmentally friendly home improvements and technology, and what 
has yet to be done.  Ms Shaw told the meeting that not all of the upgrades 
had been successful, specifically the installation of biomass heating and 
some systems had been replaced at great cost.  Westward was striving to 
achieve EPC ratings of „C‟ or above in all of its properties.  The cost to 
achieve carbon neutrality by 2050 is estimated at £91m.   
 
A further question and answer session took place covering the following 
subjects: 
 

 Larger homes – Westward would work with TDC to assess need but 
often such property would actually put the tenant in the position that 
they might end up with an unaffordable rent. 

 

 Play areas – The swings at High View had not yet been replaced and 
this was due to have happened in February.  Also temporary fencing 
was also still in place.   

 

 Bowden Green – There were concerns that the play area had been 
removed to make way for housing development. 
 

 Transfer of tenancy in the event of death -  Ms Shaw gave an 
explanation about the circumstances under which a tenancy might be 
transferred but added that not all tenancies could be transferred. 

 

 Pick up time: customer hub - unacceptably long.  It was noted that 
there had been issues with the telephone system which is to be 
replaced later this year.  On average calls are answered within 3 
minutes. Ms Shaw will feed Councillor Newton‟s experience back to 
the relevant team. 

 

 Customers with biomass system breakdowns can expect to wait for up 
to of 6 days before an engineer attends in accordance with the 
contract between Westward Housing and the supplier, although repair 
engineers are saying they operate 24/7.  Ms Shaw responded that 
customers will be given temporary alternative heating in the interim. 
She will look at the contract. 

 

 The decision where to build new homes was based on a number of 
factors, such as land availability and S106 opportunities from large 
developments. 

 

 Tenant representation – The Campbell Tickell review had carried out a 
survey of only 5% of tenants which did not seem representative.  Ms 
Shaw responded that that this is the standard commonly used. The 
Senate comments on all board papers and fulfils a scrutiny role. 
Additional consultations had been conducted which had identified 3 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

areas of concern – re-lets, antisocial behaviour and repairs.  Ms Shaw 
will provide a copy of the strategy document which was created 
following the Campbell Tickell survey. 

 

 It was suggested that there will be more people in need of housing as 
the pandemic ends and more frequent meetings should be held with 
TDC‟s Chief Executive. 

 

 Ms Shaw suggested the best form of contact for members is to e-mail 
the directors.  (See briefing pack.) 

 

 Statistics relating to evictions were requested.  Prior to the outbreak of 
the pandemic there had been 4.  This year, 2 tenants had been taken 
to court.  However, Westward always tried to work with tenants to 
clear arrears rather than opting for eviction where possible.   
 

 
Contact details for Westward Housing to be circulated to all members via 
Members‟ Bulletin. 
 

57.    DEVON HOME CHOICE  
 
The Housing Options Team Leader addressed the meeting presenting 
information about Devon Home Choice and the registration, assessment and 
prioritisation processes.  She provided statistics about the numbers on the 
register; the types of property in demand and the number of homes let for the 
period 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020 and in total since 2018.  It was 
also made clear that demand outweighed property availability and the 
majority of applicants would not receive an offer of accommodation. 
 
She explained how the properties are advertised and how the biding and 
allocation processes work.  She added that the scheme gives people choice 
as to the type of property they want to be considered for.  However, 
applicants do need to be proactive in the search, although those needing 
more assistance can have autobidding set up. 
 
Ms Shaw left the meeting.  The Chair thanked Ms Shaw for attending. 
 
The Housing Options Team Leader spoke in more detail about bedroom 
need, highlighting the high demand for one-bedroomed accommodation.  It 
was noted that a single person would not be allocated a two-bedroomed unit 
to accommodate children from split families.  More details were sought 
regarding the administering of accommodation.  The Housing Options Team 
Leader responded with details about the investigation and verification 
process and the consideration undertaken in respect of allocating an 
additional bedroom. The bedroom tax was discussed in relation to benefits.  
The Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer told the committee of 
a recent case, similar to those being discussed, and this had been 
considered under the hardship fund.  People need to be made aware of the 
hardship fund and the availability of financial assistance. 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

 
Information was provided in relation to the landlord‟s role.  The authority had 
no influence over the selection process but did discuss applications with the 
landlords if it was felt there may be a problem with an applicant. 
 
The Chair thanked the Housing Options Team Leader for the presentation 
and for the work carried out by her team. 
 

58.    GEOFFREY COX, PC QC MP  
 
The responses from Geoffrey Cox were reviewed and discussed. 
 
Councillor Langford shared supplementary information from the Economic 
Development Officer in respect of the Levelling Up Fund and broadband. 
 
The Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer confirmed that more 
funds are available, similar to the Future High Streets Fund, although full 
details were yet be circulated.   
 
A short debate on food production took place. 
 
Councillor Pennington declared an interest – he is a member of the NFU and 
CLOA. 
 
The Chair proposed that in the letter of thanks to Geoffrey Cox, the need 
should be highlighted that we work with him in detail to secure funding from 
the Levelling Up Fund, especially in light of the Future High Streets award to 
Barnstaple.  The Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring informed the 
meeting that the Leader and Chief Executive will be working with the MP on 
this.  Firstly, the bid will be prepared and finalised and then liaison with the 
MP would take place to discuss what support is needed.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Leather and seconded by Councillor 
Pennington –  
 
That: 
 
A letter be written to Geoffrey Cox thanking him for the responses and 
making reference to our understanding that he is working with the Leader 
and the Chief Executive and expressing our hope that he use his best efforts 
to secure funding for the regeneration of Bideford from the Levelling Up 
Fund. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

CLLR COTTLE-HUNKIN C X   

CLLR FORD, L X   

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

CLLR HARDING, S X   

CLLR HAWKINS, C X   

CLLR LANGFORD, S X   

CLLR LEATHER, C X   

CLLR McKENZIE, J    

CLLR NEWTON, S X   

CLLR PENNINGTON, P W X   

Mr P TOPHAM X   

 
(Vote: For - unanimous) 
 
Councillor McKenzie had left the meeting and did not take part in the vote. 
 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Newton and seconded by Councillor Leather –  
 
That: 
 
The questions and answers be circulated to all members via the Members‟ 
Bulletin. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

CLLR COTTLE-HUNKIN C X   

CLLR FORD, L X   

CLLR HARDING, S X   

CLLR HAWKINS, C   X 

CLLR LANGFORD, S X   

CLLR LEATHER, C X   

CLLR McKENZIE, J    

CLLR NEWTON, S X   

CLLR PENNINGTON, P W X   

Mr P TOPHAM X   

 
(Vote: For 8, Abstention 1) 
 

59.    FIRST DRAFT OF ANNUAL REPORT  
 
The Chair invited comments. 

Page 9



8 
 

 
 

 
The following amendments were put forward: 
 
1 Under “Work carried out in 2020/2021”, where there is reference to the 

committee considering in depth how to improve the quality of scrutiny 
that the paragraph from the minute of 22 July be included:   
 
“Councillors agreed that it was better to concentrate on doing a few 
things well, things where the Committee could effect a real change. It 
was also felt unnecessary to bring organisations in if they were 
performing well.  Whilst it was acknowledged that a direct focus would 
be more constructive it was noted that it was important to comment on 
wider topics in order that silence was not misinterpreted as 
contentment.” 
 

  
2 The Strategic Aims headings be removed and that a paragraph be 

added at the end reflecting on how the different presentations and 
activities relate to some aspect of the strategic plan. 

  
3 Outcomes – to include actions taken on recommendations. 
  
4 
 

Public participation – To remove specific case and state there had 
been some public participation which the committee had tried to follow 
up and offer assistance.  The Committee welcomes future public 
contributions. 
 
Alternatively – Have Your Say.  To include “We have had some 
participation over the year.“ after “Members of the public are welcome 
to attend any O&S meeting.  Public speaking is allowed on any 
matter.” 
 
Chair and Democratic Services Officer to reword and bring back to 
next meeting. 

  
 

60.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 
Sean Mackney of Petroc College will be attending the meeting on 28 April. 
 
The Chair offered a scoping meeting but this refused by the committee. 
Questions to be forwarded to the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
It was noted that at the end of his last presentation Mr Mackney had asked 
what opportunities the committee saw for Petroc and what we wanted from 
Petroc.  To be included in the  
 
Councillor Leather would like to hear what Petroc is offering Torridge.  Mr 
Mackney should be asked to present with a focus on youth employment.  Any 
statistics should be made available ahead of the meeting. 

Page 10



9 
 

 
 

 
Deadline for questions 20 March. 
 
The Chair commented that he will not be standing for Chair of External 
Overview & Scrutiny.   
 
Looking forward to the next year: 
 
Environment / Biosphere / Drainage and Sewage- joint meeting with North 
Devon Council.  There was a feeling that this will perhaps be better deferred 
in order to capture all parties.   
 
Leisure Services 
 
Health & Wellbeing – Leesar and Together: Drug/alcohol abuse and 
domestic violence.   
 
Other social housing landlords 
 
*May meeting - Mental health post Covid.  – Leesar and Together 
 
*Post meeting note – there is no meeting in May.  This would be the meeting 
on 9 June. 
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 2.04 pm and closed at 4.59 pm. 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 11



 
 
 

ACTION LIST 
Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee – 10 March 2021 

  

Minute 
No. 

Raised by 
Action Allocated To Progress Update Status 

Minute 56 
Westward 
Housing 
10/03/2021 

 To follow up Ms Shaw’s offer to 
provide a copy of the strategy 
document 

Democratic 
Services 

Strategic Plan doc sent by e-
mail to Committee 19/03/2021 

Completed 

Minute 56 
Westward 
Housing 
10/03/2021 

 To thank Ms Shaw for attending Democratic 
Services 

e-mail sent 18/03/2021 with 
partner evaluation form 

Completed 

Minute 56 
Westward 
Housing 
10/03/2021 

 To include contact details for 
Westward Housing in the Members’ 
Bulletin 

Democratic 
Services 

 Completed 

Minute 58 
Geoffrey 
Cox, PC 
QC MP 
10/03/2021 

 To include questions and responses 
in the Members’ Bulletin 

Democratic 
Services 

 Completed 

Minute 58 
Geoffrey 
Cox, PC 
QC MP 
10/03/2021 

 To write to Geoffrey Cox thanking 
him for the responses and making 
reference to our understanding that 
he is working with the Leader and 
the Chief Executive and expressing 
our hope that he use his best efforts 
to secure funding for the 
regeneration of Bideford from the 
Levelling Up Fund. 

Democratic 
Services 

Letter e-mailed 19/03/2021 Completed 

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 4



 

Minute 
No. 

Raised by 
Action Allocated To Progress Update Status 

Minute 59 
Annual 
Report 
10/03/2021 

 To make amendments as put 
forward by the committee  

Democratic 
Services 

 Completed 

Minute 59 
Annual 
Report 
10/03/2021 

 Public Participation – To reword 
paragraph 

Chair with  
Democratic 
Services 

 Completed 

P
age 13



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Torridge District Council 
 

External Overview & Scrutiny 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
 

2020/2021 
 
  

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



Introduction by the Chair  
 
The year got off to a fairly slow start due to Covid-19 lockdown restrictions.  
However, it was not long before Zoom meetings were set up and established as the 
new norm during the pandemic.  As we started to scrutinise, it became very apparent 
that the Coronavirus was having a huge impact on businesses and communities.  All 
of the partners who presented to the committee shared accounts of the impact of 
Covid.   It is evident that the aftermath of the virus will need to be addressed 
throughout the coming year. 
 
This report includes a brief summary of the role and responsibilities of Overview and 
Scrutiny, the work undertaken over the past year and the various outcomes, 
although the link to outcomes is not always discernible until much later on. 
 
I would like to pay tribute to my fellow members for their commitment in serving the 
committee and seeking to provide the best services for our residents.  I would also 
like to thank our support officers for their involvement in and the contribution they 
have made to our meetings. 
 
Over the last year, we have discussed topics covering a range of aspects of 
community life and council services and we were given insight into some complex 
issues. 
 
We set ourselves some priorities as you will see in the report and we will continue to 
scrutinise partners and examine issues which face our residents and communities. 
 
I hope you find this Annual Report interesting and that it gives you an indication of 
the work carried out by the committee and the accomplishments we have achieved 
in striving to make our communities safer, stronger and healthier. 
 

 
 
Councillor P Pennington 
Chair – External Overview & Scrutiny 
 

  

Page 15



The Role of External Overview & Scrutiny    
 
The Council has 2 Overview & Scrutiny Committees, an External Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee and an Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Committees have the power to review the policies of the 
Council and its objectives and are entitled to „call in‟ decisions made by the 
Community & Resources Committee which are not yet implemented.  They can also 
recommend that the Community & Resources Committee reconsider such decisions.  
Issues that remain unresolved will be referred to the Full Council for determination. 
 
The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee scrutinises the performance of 
selected external bodies and organisations serving the community within Torridge. 
 
The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee is also the Council‟s Crime and 
Disorder Committee. 
 
 

 

 

Committee Membership 

 
Chair     Councillor P Pennington 
 
Vice Chair    Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin 
  
Councillors    L Ford 
    S Harding 
    C Hawkins 
    S Langford 
    C Leather 
    J McKenzie 
    S Newton  
 
Non-elected Representatives Mr P Topham 
     Vacancy x 2 

 
Support Officers   S Dorey, Head of Legal & Governance 

    J Williams, Public Health & Housing Manager 
     K Brown, Democratic Services Officer 
     S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer 
     M Richards, Democratic Services Officer 

  

Page 16



Work carried out in 2020/21: 
 
In July, the committee had its first meeting via Zoom.  The main focus of the meeting 
was the forward plan and identifying the top priorities for discussion: 

 

 Housing 

 Covid-19 

 Unemployment 

 Brexit 

 Broadband 

 Play Strategy 
 

 
The committee also considered in depth how it could improve the quality of scrutiny.  
Councillors agreed that it was better to concentrate on doing a few things well, things 
where the Committee could effect a real change. It was also felt unnecessary to 
bring organisations in if they were performing well.  Whilst it was acknowledged that 
a direct focus would be more constructive it was noted that it was important to 
comment on wider topics in order that silence was not misinterpreted as contentment 
 
Torridge District Council: Play Strategy – 18 November 2020 
 
The updated Play / Open Space Strategy was first reviewed by the committee on 2 
September.  Members discussed the document and felt it was over-general and  
did not contain enough detail.  Provision had been considered in light of the recent 
budgetary pressures and options for asset transfers had been discussed. 
 
A revised version of the strategy document, with a focus solely on play areas, was 
brought back to committee on 18 November.  The revised version was more 
structured and clearly identified the goals the Council hoped to achieve.  
 
Members agreed that the overall strategy document was a good document; the 
rationale was sound; and the aims and aspirations were good.   
 
Having put forward various amendments, the committee resolved that the Play Area 
Strategy (subject to any amendments required and when accompanied by all 
necessary additional information) be endorsed and that it progress to Community 
and Resources Committee for adoption at the earliest opportunity. 
 
A further recommendation was made that a maintenance budget for play areas be 
allocated. 
 
Outcomes: 
 
On 1 February, Community & Resources resolved that the Play Area Strategy be 
adopted. 
 
On 1 February. Community & Resources resolved that no maintenance budget for 
play areas be allocated. 

Page 17



 
On 16 March.  Having been called in by the Chair of External Overview & Scrutiny, 
the Community & Resources resolution, that no maintenance budget for play areas 
be allocated, was considered by the Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  
Following further discussion, the Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee voted 
unanimously against the resolution of the Community & Resources Committee.   
 
The matter will now be presented to Full Council for consideration. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Community Safety Partnership – 25 November 2020 
 
The joint meeting with North Devon Council was chaired by the Chair of North 
Devon‟s Crime and Disorder Committee. 
 
The North Devon & Torridge Community Safety Partnership is a statutory body set 
up under sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. It is made up of 
representatives from several agencies involved with crime, disorder and community 
safety. There is a joint Community Safety Partnership (CSP) board between North 
Devon and Torridge which meets on a quarterly basis.  The Chair of the Joint CSP, 
Superintendent Toby Davies, attended the meeting to the deliver the CSP‟s annual 
report.  Information and statistics were provided on a range of subjects from counter 
terrorism and modern-day slavery; the emergency response to Covid; to funding and 
local crime. 
 
Of particular interest were the Safer Summer Scheme and the Street Marshall 
Programme, which members would like to see continue. 
 
Superintendent Davies listened to members‟ observations and will feed these back 
to the Police & Crime Commissioner and relevant bodies.  He took on board that 
members would like to see case studies included in the next annual report, together 
with Anti Social Behaviour statistics. 
 
A recommendation was made that Communications be put out to enhance the 
reporting of ASB and how it is dealt with. 
 
Outcomes: 
 

Torridge District Council has posted on the website some useful information about 
Anti Social Behaviour which is easily accessible either by searching “Anti Social 
Behaviour” or using the link https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/16511/My-neighbour-
is-causing-me-problems-with-their-behaviour---what-can-I-do 
 
 
 

The Economic and Social Impact of the Pandemic – 20 January 2021 
 

Taw & Torridge Volunteer Service (TTVS), Torridge, North & West Devon Citizens 
Advice and Encompass were invited to the meeting on 20 January to give updates 
particularly in light of the impact of Covid-19.  Prior to the meeting, each organisation 
had also provided an annual report for members‟ perusal. 

Page 18

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/16511/My-neighbour-is-causing-me-problems-with-their-behaviour---what-can-I-d
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/16511/My-neighbour-is-causing-me-problems-with-their-behaviour---what-can-I-d


 
TTVS provided statistics and information relating to the organisation‟s activities over 
the past year which included projects such as carer support; financial inclusion, 
making sure people receive all the benefits they are entitled to; care for older 
members of the community incorporating dementia cafes and help at home.  Mr Hill 
confirmed that TTVS had seen an increase in mental health issues, particularly in the 
younger cohort; and loneliness, including members of staff now working remotely. 
 

Vicki Rowe of North & West Devon Citizens Advice presented the impact report for 
the period April – September 2020.  She explained how her organisation had 
adapted to continue offering a service throughout the pandemic.  Demand had 
predominantly been in relation to welfare benefits and Citizens Advice support had 
generated a £330,425 uplift of income to households.  A 60% increase in demand on 
services for Covid-related debt management was anticipated. 
Clair Fisher, Encompass, gave an insight into rough sleeping, homelessness and 
housing need in the district.  She also informed members about the charity‟s money 
and debt advice services. 
 
Following the 3 presentations, a round table discussion took place, with all 3 
charities contributing responses to questions.  Members suggested the charities 
work more closely together to avoid duplication of services. 
 
The Committee had recommended to Full Council that they write to the MP and 
government to continue funding support to the charities. 
 
The Committee had resolved that it be recommended to Community & 
Resources/Full Council that, when they consider the budget, they continue to fund 
Citizens Advice and TTVS. 
 
Outcomes: 
 
The committee‟s recommendation was noted at the Full Council meeting on 22 
February.   
 

 
Westward Housing – 10 March 2021 

 

Barbara Shaw, Chief Executive of Westward Housing gave an informative talk about 
the organisation‟s values, priorities and strategies.  She gave details about the 
housing stock and planned developments and spoke on the collection of rental 
income, arrears and financial assistance, particularly in light of Covid-19.  Westward 
Housing had given an assuranc start of the pandemic that customers falling behind 
with payment due to Covid would not lose their homes. 
 
The presentation was complemented by a report from TDC‟s Housing Options Team 
Leader about Devon Home Choice, a programme which enables people to look for 
council and housing association homes and to select and bid for a property they 
would like to live in. 
 
 

Page 19



Engagement with Local MP – 10 March 2021 
 
The Rt Hon Sir Geoffrey Cox QC MP had been invited to the meeting but had not 
been able to attend.  However, a list of questions from the Committee was submitted 
and a very detailed reply was received from Sir Geoffrey ahead of the meeting.  
Members discussed the responses which covered a range of topics from the EU–UK 
Trade and Cooperation Agreement, the Future Agriculture Policy and the Planning 
Reform to the unsuccessful Future High Streets Fund bid, the new Levelling Up 
Fund and broadband. 
 
A letter of thanks was sent to the MP. 
 
Petroc College / Promoting Youth Employment – 28 April 2021 
 
Recommendations made by the Committee: 
 
Outcomes: 
 
 
Partner Evaluations 

 
Further to the interview survey carried out in 2017 of Torridge District Council 
partners who are periodically invited to discuss their work with the Committee and 
the subsequent introduction of the Partner Evaluation Form, Mr Topham, Non-
elected Independent Member, has continued to analyse the feedback from our 
partners and has provided the following update: 

 
We have continued to invite external partners giving presentations to evaluate their 
experience of the Committee and its impact on their work with Council residents.  
The Partner Evaluation Form (PEF) is digitally delivered to partners after each 
presentation meeting, inviting them to rate and comment on key aspects of their 
working relationship with the Committee. 
 
As described in last year‟s Annual Report, external partners continue to positively 
evaluate their engagement with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  One area 
where partners consistently give a lower rating of the Committee is in relation to the 
communication of recommendations made and actions planned after the 
presentation.  It is hoped that the resolution, below, will help to address that concern 
by partners. 
 
In October 2020, Committee Members conducted an appraisal of the value of the 
PEF after 18 months of use.  After reviewing a summary of partner feedback over 
that period and considering options for its continuing use, the Committee made the 
following recommendation: 
That the evaluation procedure continue as is but with the recommendations being 
included in the form and that a Member is linked with a particular organisation and 
they follow up with that organisation a couple of times a year. 
 
(Vote: For 4, Against 3, Abstentions 2) 
 

Page 20



It was agreed that a group of members will work to revise the form and procedure in 
accordance with the resolution. 
 

The Forward Plan 
 
The Committee‟s Forward Plan groups partners and topics in line with TDC‟s 
strategic aims and we are pleased to report that the presentations above gave the 
Committee the opportunity to look in more depth at how the Council and its partners 
achieve stronger, safer, healthier communities; a prosperous and sustainable 
economy and an effective and customer focused offering. 
 
 

Public Participation 

Our Committee welcome the Public Contribution when a resident raises issues.  
External Overview and Scrutiny would welcome more. Unfortunately, only one 
speaker raised concerns, this was about the viability of hospitality businesses due to 
the corona virus shutdown.   Members of the Committee, plus ward council 
members, did  a visit in the light of concerns raised.  Given that hospitality is a vital 
part of the economic and social fabric of our community, the speaker was guided to 
ask to address the Full Council.  Unfortunately, this has not yet taken place.   

There will be so much to consider as the Torridge community recovers from the 
events of this year.   Health, housing, education, the economy and policing are but a 
few.  Members of the public raising matters would improve the delivery of the 
meeting. 

 Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings.  Public speaking is allowed on any matter. 

Page 21



 EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/2022 
 

Cycle 1 
9 June 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 2 
21 July 2021 

6.00pm 

Cycle 3 
1 Sept. 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 4 
13 Oct. 2021 

6pm 
 

Cycle 5 
24 Nov 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 6 
19 Jan 2022 

6pm 

Cycle 7 
9 March 2022 

2pm 

Cycle 8 
27 April 2022 

6pm 

 
- Mental health post 
Covid.  – Leesar and 

Together (Drug/alcohol 
service and domestic 

violence) 
 

Forward Plan 

 
 

  
Environment / 

Biosphere / Drainage 
and Sewage- joint 
meeting with North 

Devon Council 

    

 
  

Community Safety 
Partnership 

   
 

 

UPCOMING ITEMS FOR FORWARD PLAN  

Prosperous and Sustainable Economy 
 

Sectors 
Agriculture & Fisheries – NFU / support organisations  
Agriculture Bill – invite MP 
The economy (national / local) 
Education – to be broken down into smaller segments 
Employment (NEETS, Petroc) / Working with young people / apprenticeships 
Housing (first time home buyers, planning policy, social housing, homelessness) 
Organisations 
Bideford Chamber of Commerce 
North Devon+/Leader5 
Infrastructure 
Empty buildings 
Industrial Units and local economy 
Transport (buses, Link Road) 

Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities  
 

Concerns 
Ambulance cover, hospital beds, healthcare providers 
Ambulance response times in relation to downgrading to Category 2 of serious conditions such as 
stroke and chest pain (from Bideford / Northam AAG) 
Fuel poverty 
Pharmacies 
Resourcing of community policing including PCSOs 
Staffing at North Devon Hospital 
Social housing landlords 
Leisure Services 
Organisations 
Burton Art Gallery 
CAB 
Healthwatch 
Leisure Services (1610):  Joint T&F update and separate scrutiny by External  
Suzanne Tracey – North Devon Healthcare Trust 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 10



TTVS 

Quality Environment 
 

Concerns 
Housing developments and water run off 
Overflow issues at Appledore / Westward Ho 
Surface water draining / Flooding 
Water Quality – Sewerage 
Organisations 
AONB / Biosphere 
Environment Agency and Devon County Council (surface water draining / flooding) 
Southwest Water (overflow issues and Appledore / Westward Ho)  

Effective and Customer Focused Council  
 
Mr Topham:  Liaison with external bodies / Partner Evaluation Form for 12 month review. 
 

  

 

Health, well-being and community safety organisations 

Together (drug and alcohol commissioned service) 
Leesar (domestic violence commissioned support services) 
Office of the Police and Crime Commisioner 
Devon safeguarding adults board 
Devon children’s and family board 
North Devon Biosphere 
Active Devon 
South West Water 
Western Power Distribution 
Surestart 
BBfA (better business for all) 
South West Growth Hub 
South West Armed Forces Covenant Partnership Board 
TTVS 
RSPCA 
 

Trading standards 
Environment Agency 
Devon Anti Slavery Partnership/ Unseen 
One Northern Devon 
Devon Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Local resilience forum 
Lendology (formally Wessex Loans) 
361 Energy 
Integr8 
Recovery Devon 
Space 
Encompass South West 
Westward Housing 
Livewest Housing 
Bideford Street Pastors 
Devon Libraries unlimited 
 

 

P
age 23


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Action List
	9 Annual Report
	10 Consideration of the Forward Plan 2021 - 2022

